
 
 
July 10, 2025 

BOROUGH OF HILLSDALE  

Planning/ Zoning Board 
MINUTES 

 
 

7:30 PM 

 

 

Page 1 of 9 
 

 

Vice Chairman Riordan called the meeting to order at approximately 7:30 pm.  Deputy Secretary Janeiro 
recited the Open Public Meeting Statement and Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  
 

Vice Chairman S. Riordan, Secretary S. Raymond, Mr. E. Alter, Mr. D. Friedman 
(8:03p.m.), Mr. S. Griep, Dr. A. Weinberg, Mr. S. Hipp and Mayor Sheinfield 
 

MEMBERS ABSENT: 
 

Chairwoman M. Kates and Council Liason Trochimiuk 

EMPLOYEES PRESENT: 
 

Ms. D. Federico, Board Attorney 
Mr. C. Statile, Board Engineer 
Ms. T. Janeiro, Deputy Secretary  
 
 

OPEN TO PUBLIC (for matters not on the agenda): 
The meeting was opened to the public for matters not on the agenda. There being none, the meeting was 
closed to the public.  
 

INVOICES 

INVOICES – CSG Law Total Motion Second Outcome 

644350 $1000.00 M. Sheinfield E. Alter Passed 

644354 $55.50    

644355 $92.50    

644356 $749.77    

644357 $55.50    

644358 $129.50    

644359 $555.00    

644360 $370.00    

Total -  $3007.77    

 
MEETING MINUTES 
June 12, 2025 
 
As amended. 
 
Motion Second Outcome 
S. Raymond E. Alter Passed 

 
RESOLUTION #2025-12 
DENIAL OF JURISDICTION 
PZ-12-24 
Block 4103 / 14; 11 Boulevard South, Township of Washington 
Cianfrone Properties, LLC. 



 
 
July 10, 2025 

BOROUGH OF HILLSDALE  

Planning/ Zoning Board 
MINUTES 

 
 

7:30 PM 

 

 

Page 2 of 9 
 

Improved Street Access 
 
A motion was made by Secretary Raymond to approve the memorializing resolution.  The motion was 
seconded by Dr. Weinberg, and carried by a roll call vote as follows: 
 
Vice Chairman Riordan  Yes 
Secretary Raymond   Yes 
Mr. Alter    Yes 
Mr. Griep    Yes 
Dr. Weinberg    Yes 
 
RESOLUTION #2025-13 
AUTHOIZING ACCEPTANCE OF SERVICE AND DIRECTION ANTICIPATED DEFENSE OF DENIAL OF 
JURISDICTION OVER APPLICATION TO BUILD DRIVEWAY ON PAPER STREET TO ACCESS PROPERTY IN 
WASHINGTON TOWNSHIP 
PZ-12-24 
Block 4103 / 14; 11 Boulevard South, Township of Washington 
Cianfrone Properties, LLC. 
Improved Street Access 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Griep to approve the memorializing resolution.  The motion was seconded by 
Dr. Weinberg, and carried by a roll call vote as follows: 
 
Vice Chairman Riordan  Yes 
Secretary Raymond   Yes 
Mr. Alter    Yes 
Mr. Griep    Yes 
Dr. Weinberg    Yes 
 
NEW HEARING 
PZ-6-25 
Block 605 Lot 9; 48 Wierimus Lane 
Applicant: Roger Gross / Owner: Paul & Gayle Gross 
Minor Subdivision 
 
Attorney Stephen Sinisi from the Law Office of Stephen P. Sinisi, LLC, located in Paramus, New Jersey, was 
present for this hearing.  
 
The applicant is Mr. Roger Gross, property owners Paul and Gayle Gross’s son. 
 
Mr. Sinisi called his first witness. Mr. Christopher Lantelme is the applicant’s engineer and will be testifying 
for this application. Mr. Lantelme gave his education and experience to the board and was accepted as an 
expert witness. His office is located in Hillsdale.  



 
 
July 10, 2025 

BOROUGH OF HILLSDALE  

Planning/ Zoning Board 
MINUTES 

 
 

7:30 PM 

 

 

Page 3 of 9 
 

 
Ms. Federico sworn in Mr. Lantelme.  
 
The subdivision plan dated March 10, 2025 was marked as Exhibit A-1. The applicant is requesting to 
relocate a lot line and transfer 39,914 sq. ft. from 48 Wierimus Lane (Lot 9) to 271 Pascack Road (Lot 17.01). 
The area to be transferred contains a tennis court and another accessory court. Mr. Lantelme said the 
tennis court is at least 10 ft. from the property line. 
 
Mr. Sinisi said existing non-conformities apply, but this application will not add to the non-conformities in 
any way. He believes there will be no issues if this application should be approved.  
 
Ms. Federico swore in Mr. Statile.  
 
Mr. Statile said this is a minor subdivision with a lot line change only. No new lots will be created.  
 
Board Questions of Mr. Lantelme: 
 
Mr. Alter – How far away are the closest structures on Lot 20? Mr. Lantelme stated that he does not know 
the distance. 
 
Vice Chairman Riordan – Asked if the reasoning for the irregular lot was to not interfere with the tennis 
courts. Mr. Lantelme said yes. 
 
Open to the public to ask questions of Mr. Lantelme. 
 
Mr. Jack Rosenburg – Asked if any new building is being proposed? Mr. Lantelme said nothing is proposed. 
Mr. Rosenburg asked what the reason for this lot line is. Mr. Lantelme said to minimize the size of Lot 9 and 
put the courts on Lot 17.01. The house and pool are remaining. This application is for a change in the lot 
line only. 
 
Open to the public for questions or comments on this application. 
 
There being none, the meeting was closed to the public. 
 
Dr. Weinberg asked if Woodcliff Lake would have to approve the application. Mr. Sinisi said they have been 
working with Woodcliff Lake and they are not aware of any requirements. 
 
A motion was made by Mayor Sheinfield to approve the minor subdivision (lot line change only).  The 
motion was seconded by Dr. Weinberg and carried by a roll call vote as follows: 
 
Secretary Raymond   Yes 
Mr. Alter    Yes 
Mr. Griep    Yes 



 
 
July 10, 2025 

BOROUGH OF HILLSDALE  

Planning/ Zoning Board 
MINUTES 

 
 

7:30 PM 

 

 

Page 4 of 9 
 

Dr. Weinberg    Yes 
Mr. Hipp    Yes 
Mayor Sheinfield   Yes 
Vice Chairman Riordan  Yes 
 
A break was taken from 7:57 p.m. until 8:04 p.m. A roll call vote was taken. All previous members remained 
and Mr. Friedman joined the meeting at 8:03 p.m. 
 
Mayor Sheinfield announced the HE&FSP was accepted by the Mayor and Council. 
 
CONTINUED HEARING 
PZ-3-25 
Block 1108 Lot 3; 33 Beechwood Drive 
Vincent & Mary Cashell 
New Single-Family Home 
 
Mayor Sheinfield left the meeting as he is not eligible to vote on a D Variance.  
 
Ms. Federico swore in the following people: 
 
Mr. Joseph Bruno – Architect 
Ms. Mary Cashell – Homeowner 
 
Mr. Vincent Cashell owns the property with Ms. Mary Cashell. 
 
Ms. Cashell currently lives in Pearl River. If approved, the plan is she will move into the home located at 37 
Beechwood Drive, and her daughter and her family will move into the newly constructed home at 33 
Beechwood Drive. 
 
Mr. Bruno went over the ten photographs taken by himself on March 16, 2025. 
 
Mr. Bruno described the application. The owner is proposing a ground floor entrance foyer and stairs to be 
built above the parking area. The property is in a flood zone and must be elevated. The first floor above the 
parking area will consist of a living room, dining room, kitchen, den, lavatory and closets. The second floor 
will accommodate three bedrooms, two bathrooms and a laundry room. 
 
The applicant is seeking the following variances: 

1. Building Coverage:  33% proposed where a maximum of 25% is allowed 

2. Impervious Coverage:  46.67% proposed where a maximum of 30% is allowed 

3. Floor Area Ratio:  79.78% proposed where a maximum of 35% is allowed 

4. Front Yard Setback: 15.0 ft. (Towards Nugent Place in Westwood) where a minimum of 30.0 ft. is 

required.  

 



 
 
July 10, 2025 

BOROUGH OF HILLSDALE  

Planning/ Zoning Board 
MINUTES 

 
 

7:30 PM 

 

 

Page 5 of 9 
 

Mr. Bruno stated that the existing lot area is 5,000 sq. ft. and the required lot area in this zone is 7,500 sq. 
ft.  
 
Mr. Bruno spoke about the proposed deck. He said without the proposed deck, the building coverage 
would be almost conforming.  
 
Questions of Mr. Bruno: 
 
Secretary Raymond – Asked if he knew the square footage of 71 Beechwood Avenue and 79 Beechwood 
Avenue. Mr. Bruno said he tried to get the calculations but was only told they are conforming in FAR. 
Secretary Raymond asked why these homes are compliant with building coverage? Mr. Bruno said he 
believes the lot sizes are larger.  
 
Mr. Bruno commented that the owner of the property reached out to Borough Administrator Michael 
Ghassali, to inquire if they could purchase some of the vacant land next to the proposed site that the town 
owns. Mr. Ghassali told them that the land was purchased with Green Acres funds and cannot be sold.  
 
Secretary Raymond questions Mr. Statile regarding the stormwater management. Mr. Statile made it very 
clear that this property is in a floodway of the Pascack Brook. He also mentioned that the DEP has strict 
requirements for permitting in floodways. He reminded the board that their job is not to permit ability, but 
feasibility.  
 
Mr. Bruno said if this application is approved, the client will hire a licensed New Jersey engineer. 
 
Ms. Federico said that if the DEP requires anything that triggers a variance, this applicant will have to come 
back to this board.  
 
Mr. Statile spoke about conditions that could be placed in the resolution. 
 
Mr. Statile spoke about the existing trees. Mr. Bruno said approximately 20-25 trees will need to be 
removed on the property, and they will comply with the tree ordinance. Mr. Statile said as long as the 
applicant understands that they will need to be replaced or other arrangements will need to be made.  
 
Mr. Alter – Is concerned with the proposed impervious coverage. Mr. Statile said they could reduce the 
number slightly by proposing a paver driveway. That would change the impervious coverage to 36.86%; 
that is a 6% reduction. 
 
Mr. Alter asked what type of stormwater management he would recommend. Mr. Statile said they would 
need to do test pits.  
 
A discussion was had pertaining to permeable pavers. Mr. Statile said you have to be careful as those types 
of pavers do not work in flood ways.  
 



 
 
July 10, 2025 

BOROUGH OF HILLSDALE  

Planning/ Zoning Board 
MINUTES 

 
 

7:30 PM 

 

 

Page 6 of 9 
 

Dr. Weinberg – Commented that the house looks too big for the property. The surrounding homes look 
more appropriately sized on their lots.   
 
He asked if this proposed home would be an issue with Westwood. Mr. Bruno said the property is located 
entirely in Hillsdale only.  
 
Mr. Bruno said since the home has to be elevated, the deck will serve as outdoor living space. 
 
Mr. Friedman – Asked about screening on Nugent Place. Mr. Bruno said you could do some taller plantings 
due to the elevations. Mr. Statile said that is not an unreasonable condition to have in the resolution. Mr. 
Bruno said there will be a planting plan. 
 
Asked to go over the variance. The applicant is seeking the following variances: building coverage, 
impervious coverage, floor area ratio and front yard setback. Mr. Friedman asked about the side yard 
requirements. Vice Chairman Riordan said this is not an issue in this application. 
 
Asked about the roof overhang and the calculations on the plan. Mr. Bruno will update the plans.  
 
Spoke about the ridge elevation and how it is built and measured.  
 
Mr. Statile suggested that as a condition of approval, the deck may not be covered.  
 
Vice Chairman Riordan – Asked where the AC condenser will be located. Mr. Bruno said under the covered 
area. 
 
Will there be exterior deck stairs? Mr. Bruno said no. 
 
Asked if you took away the hardship, would the first and second floors still be over the FAR requirements? 
Mr. Bruno said yes because this is an undersized lot. 
 
Asked if anything can be removed from the proposed building to eliminate some of the building coverage. 
Mr. Bruno said he can eliminate about 120 sq. ft.  
 
Open to the public for questions of Mr. Bruno. 
 
There being none, the meeting was closed to the public. 
 
Mr. Michael Pessolano is the applicant’s planner and will be testifying for this application. Mr. Pessolano 
gave his education and experience to the board and was accepted as an expert witness. His office is located 
in Bogota.  
 
Ms. Federico sworn in Mr. Pessolano. 
 



 
 
July 10, 2025 

BOROUGH OF HILLSDALE  

Planning/ Zoning Board 
MINUTES 

 
 

7:30 PM 

 

 

Page 7 of 9 
 

Exhibit A-1 – 5 Pages: Excerpt from Hillsdale Tax Assessor Map, Map 2. Subject Property, FEMA Flood 
Hazard Area Map, Ariel Google Image and Photos of Surrounding Homes.  
 
Mr. Pessolano went over Exhibit A-1 in detail. 
 
He discussed the FAR of the proposed home and stated that the home is the right fit for this neighborhood. 
 
Discussed the through-lot condition. 
 
He said that when you are building a home in a flood prone area, the only thing you can do is elevate the 
home. 
 
Mr. Pessolano spoke about the positive criteria.  
 
Mr. Pessolano spoke about the negative criteria.  
 
The home is largely in the building envelope, and there is no intrusion to the surrounding areas. Especially 
when screening is installed.  
 
Spoke about the requested variances. This is a three-bedroom home that he believes is suitable for a 
family. Since a basement will not be able to be installed, the two floors will have to serve as living space 
and storage. 
 
Believes the stormwater management requirements will mitigate any impervious coverage issues. 
 
Questions of Mr. Pessolano: 
 
Dan Friedman – Asked about the through lot condition and the surrounding homes. Mr. Pessolano 
explained.  
 
Dr. Weinberg – Asked about Mr. Bruno’s photos and if the deck and driveway would be conforming. Mr. 
Pessolano replied yes. Dr. Weinberg asked what is under the deck. Mr. Bruno said, open joints. The area 
under the deck will not be paved. A question regarding 37 Beechwood Drive was asked. Mr. Bruno did not 
know the answer. Dr. Weinberg said he had an issue with the D4 variance. Mr. Pessolano said the smaller 
the lot, the scarier the numbers look, but the proposed home is compatible with the surrounding homes.  
 
Mr. Griep – Very impressed with your presentation. He asked if the applicants have kids. Mr. Pessolano said 
yes.  
 
Any analysis on the FAR or building coverage of the surrounding homes? Mr. Pessolano said his review 
focused on the site in question, but he did touch on the negative in his testimony.  
 



 
 
July 10, 2025 

BOROUGH OF HILLSDALE  

Planning/ Zoning Board 
MINUTES 

 
 

7:30 PM 

 

 

Page 8 of 9 
 

Questioned the FAR calculations and asked if some changes could be made. Mr. Bruno said the home 
would have to be the size of a clubhouse. He asked the size of the bedrooms. 
 
Vice Chairman Riordan – Said he understands that this is an undersized lot, but if this were a conforming 
lot, the FAR would still be over. Although he agrees with the architectural design. 
 
Is there any negligence by the board permitting an impervious coverage calculation of this size in a 
floodway? Mr. Statile said no, they still need permits from the state. Ms. Federico said this is a permitted 
use. If we didn’t allow anything, that’s where there would be an issue. 
 
Open to the public for questions of Mr. Pessolano. 
 
There being none, the meeting was closed to the public. 
 
Ms. Christine Cashell and Mr. Michael Gormally of 37 Beechwood Drive were sworn in by Ms. Federico. 
They will be the family building and moving into the proposed home. They have lived at 37 Beechwood 
Drive since 2018 and have dealt with previous flooding. They love the area and want to continue to raise 
their family in the neighborhood. No board members or public had questions. 
 
Dr. Weinberg asked about the potential of reduction.  
 
A break was taken from 9:31 p.m. until 9:36 p.m. A roll call vote was taken. All previous members 
remained. 
 
Mr. Bruno came back and updated the board with the new proposed calculations. 36.81% is the new 
imperious coverage calculation. The deck in the rear will be constructed with open joints, and there will be 
no hard surface below the deck.  
 
Mr. Hipp asked for the deck calculations.  
 
The roof detail will be adjusted on the plans. 
 
The FAR calculation is still at 78.78%. 
 
The following conditions will be in the resolution: 

• No permeable pavers installed. 

• Comply with the tree ordinance 

• Planting plan to be submitted. 

• Evergreen screening in the rear yard focusing on the area of Nugent Place. 

• Reduce the driveway area. 

• No covered deck. 

• No hard surface below the deck. 



 
 
July 10, 2025 

BOROUGH OF HILLSDALE  

Planning/ Zoning Board 
MINUTES 

 
 

7:30 PM 

 

 

Page 9 of 9 
 

 
A motion was made by Mr. Griep to approve the application subject to conditions.  The motion was 
seconded by Mr. Friedman and carried by a roll call vote as follows: 
 
Secretary Raymond   No 
Mr. Alter    Yes 
Mr. Friedman    Yes 
Mr. Griep    Yes 
Dr. Weinberg    Yes 
Mr. Hipp    Yes 
Vice Chairman Riordan  Yes 
 
All members spoke about the application prior to announcing their vote. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
No Board discussion took place.  
 
OPEN TO PUBLIC (for matters not on the agenda): 
The meeting was opened to the public for matters not on the agenda. There being none, the meeting was 
closed to the public.  
 

ADJOURNMENT: 
The meeting was adjourned. 
 
Next Public Hearing - Tuesday, July 22, 2025 7:30 pm; Borough Hall Council Chambers. 


